
 

 
 
 
 
Summons to Meeting 
 
Thursday 22 April 2021 
 

Licensing Committee 
 

Friday 30 April 2021, 2.00 pm 
 

Zoom Virtual Meeting 
 

Membership: 
  
Councillor Ron Munby MBE (Chair) Councillor Adrian Kirkbride (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Mary Bainbridge Councillor Carmel Bell 
Councillor Allan Daniels Councillor Peter Gaston 
Councillor Malcolm Grainger Councillor Daniel Horsley 
Councillor Peter Kendall Councillor Elaine Lynch 
Councillor Alan Smith Councillor Stephen Stoddart 
Councillor Alan Tyson Councillor Will Wilkinson 
Councillor Lynda Williams  
 

This meeting will be broadcast live on the Allerdale Borough Council YouTube™ Channel 
 

If you have any questions or queries contact Lee Jardine on 01900 702502 or 
lee.jardine@allerdale.gov.uk 

 

Agenda 
 
1. Minutes  (Pages 3 - 34) 
 

 To sign as a correct record the minutes of the following meetings 
 
Licensing Panels held on 26 February 2020 and 30 September 2020 
 
Licensing Regulatory Panels held on 14 August 2020, 27 August 2020, 25 
September 2020, 30 October 2020 and 11 November 2020 

  

2. Apologies for Absence   
 

3. Declaration of Interests   
 

 Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other 



registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to 
any item on the agenda in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct. 

  

4. Questions   
 

 To answer questions from members of the public – submitted in writing or by 
electronic mail no later than 5.00pm on a working day, allowing two clear 
working days before the day of the meeting. 

  

5. Frequency of vehicle testing - Hackney Carriage and Private Hire vehicles  
(Pages 35 - 44) 

 

6. Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Screens  (Pages 45 - 56) 
 

Licensing Committee Procedures  (Pages 57 - 60) 
 

 
 

 
 
Chief Executive 
 

 
Date of Next Meeting: 

 
To be confirmed 

 
 
 



At a meeting of the Licensing Panel held in Cumberland Suite, Market Hall, Wigton, 
CA7 9AA on Wednesday 26 February 2020 at 2.00 pm 
 
Members 
 
  
Councillor Allan Daniels Councillor Adrian Kirkbride 
Councillor Alan Smith  
 
Apologies for absence were received from   
 
Staff Present 
 
D Fletcher, L Jardine and J Morgan 
 
Also Present 
 
 
 
362. Election of Chair  

 
Councillor Smith was elected as Chair for the ensuing meeting 
 

363. Declaration of Interests  
 
None declared 
 

364. Questions  
 
None received 
 

365. To consider representations received in relation to an application for a 
premises licence  
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report to consider 
representations received in relation to an application for a premises licence. 
 
This report concerns an application for a premises licence for Hunter Leisure 
Group Limited, Bowness House Farm, Bowness on Solway, Wigton.  
 
The applicant is Hunter Leisure Group Limited. 
 
Members were given site layout and site location plans. 
 
Hunter Leisure Group Limited applied for a premises licence with the following 
description: Leisure Complex including guest accommodation, bistro-restaurant 
& bar, onsite shop, and visitor centre & museum 
 
The designated premises supervisor was Mr I Hunter and the application was 
for no more than 4999 people. 
 
Members were advised of the application process to date. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 
The application was submitted on 15 November 2019. It was received 
electronically, and Allerdale Borough Council were under a duty to circulate the 
application to the responsible authorities. Due to an oversight the application 
was not circulated at the correct time. With the agreement of the applicant’s 
agent, Knight Training, the application was circulated to the responsible 
authorities on the 3 January 2020.  
 
It was not considered necessary to re-advertise the application as Knight 
Training had publicised the application in line with the regulations. That 
consultation resulted in representations from interested parties.  
 
Members were then advised of the representations received.  
 
Cumbria Constabulary and Environmental Health responded to the application 
and suggested measures which they felt would promote the licensing 
objectives. The applicants accepted those conditions and, if granted, they 
should be added to the licence.  
 
Two representations had been received against the application, one being a 
petition. They were from interested parties. Guidance issued under S.182 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 allows for an interested party to have their personal details 
kept confidential from the applicant if they fear intimidation or violence may 
result from making a representation. The individual interested party and the 
covering letter for the petition both ask for the provisions in paragraph 9.27 of 
the Guidance to be applied and personal details were kept confidential. 
 
Members were then advised of the options available and that they were to 
decide in line with the licensing objectives. 
 
The Applicant’s solicitor (Mr Woods) supported by the applicant (Mr Hunter) and 
agent (Mr Knight) then made representations, explaining the background to the 
application then responded to concerns raised in the representations. 
 
In relation to the 24/7 licence, they acknowledged that this could cause concern 
for residents but reassured the panel that any after-hours alcohol sales will be 
restricted to onsite and in room consumption. The solicitor then advised of the 
comprehensive list of conditions including the installation of CCTV, challenge 
25, training and development and explained the operating schedule in detail. 
 
The solicitor then explained that they had agreed stringent conditions with 
Environmental Health and Cumbria Constabulary, and as such both these 
consultees had withdrawn their objections. 
 
Further responses to concerns were explained to member. In relation to 
staffing, several staff will be personal licence holders and sufficient staff will 
always be on site, including overnight. Underage drinking would be managed 
with the challenge 25 policy and staff will be trained to deal with this. Members 
were also advised of the alcohol pricing policy which is as per the mandatory 
conditions. 
 

Page 4



The solicitor then explained that in relation to concerns over licensing hours and 
operating schedule, they were reasonable and there is no evidence to not grant 
the licence based on these concerns. 
 
In summary the solicitor explained that the residents’ concerns were unfounded 
that the licensing hours were not unduly excessive, concluding that the granting 
of the licensing would be a ‘fantastic benefit for Bowness on Solway’. 
 
Members then asked questions of the applicant and representatives in relation 
to CCTV, 24/7 room service and risk assessments. 
 
In response Mr Woods (Solicitor) explained that the CCTV would be operating 
in public areas, but that they would not be monitored 24/7. Regarding room 
service, all staff will be trained to deal with all issues including late night 
refreshments and if security becomes a concern the applicant will review its 
security procedures and if relevant seek SIA registered security staff. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer then referred members to 
representations received and that due to issues of confidentiality, the objectors 
did not want to attend the meeting in person. 
 
The solicitor then made final representations to the panel, reiterating that 
concerns raised by residents were not founded, and that the panel should 
approve the application as it is set out. 
 
All parties were then asked to leave the meeting for the panel to consider the 
application. 
 
The Panel considered all information presented to it in the officer’s report, 
including all the site plans and both the representations provided at the meeting 
and the written representations provided in the report. 
 
Councillor Daniels moved the motion to grant the Premises Licence 
 
This was seconded by Councillor Peter Kirkbride. 
 
A vote followed, 3 voted in favour of the motion, 0 against and 0 abstentions. 
 
The motion was carried. 
 
Resolved 
 
To grant the premises licence. 
 
Decision/Reason 
 
In making its decision, the Panel had regard to the Licensing Act 2003 and the 
four licensing objectives under that Act: the prevention of crime and disorder, 
public safety, the prevention of public nuisance and the protection of children 
from harm.  The Panel also considered the responses from Cumbria 
Constabulary and Environmental Health following consultation, and the 
representations received from the interested parties.  In addition, the Panel had 

Page 5



regard to the information provided by the Applicant’s representative and the 
information set out in the report by the Licensing and Compliance Officer. 
 
The Panel considered the Secretary of State’s guidance under section 182 of 
the Licensing Act 2003, the Council’s Licensing Policy and Human Rights.  
 
The Panel sought to balance the interests of the licence holder and the 
interested parties.   
 
The Panel considered the options available to it, which were: 
 
To grant the licence subject to the conditions mentioned in the operating 
schedule, modified to such extent as the authority considers necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives, and any mandatory condition. 
 
To exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which 
the application relates. 
 
To refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor. 
 
To reject the application. 
 
The Panel felt that it was reasonable and proportionate to take the following 
steps to promote the licensing objectives: 
 
To agree to grant the licence subject to the updated conditions outlined at the 
hearing, which are appended to this decision. 
 
In making its decision, the Panel considered the fact that following mediation, 
the Responsible Authorities had withdrawn their representations.  It considers 
that the conditions as outlined are sufficient to promote the licensing objectives. 
 
If any party is aggrieved by this decision, they have the right to appeal to the 
Magistrates Court within 21 days of receiving written notification of the decision. 
 
 
 
 

The meeting closed at 3.15 pm 
 

Page 6



At a meeting of the Licensing Panel held in Zoom Virtual Meeting on Wednesday 30 
September 2020 at 1.00 pm 
 
Members 
 
  
Councillor Malcolm Grainger Councillor Adrian Kirkbride 
Councillor Elaine Lynch  
 
Apologies for absence were received from   
 
Staff Present 
 
D Fletcher, L Jardine, J Morgan, G Roach and L Tomlinson 
 
 
 The virtual meeting was adjourned until 13:40 due to technical issues.   
  
149. Election of Chair  

 
Councillor Grainger was elected chair for the ensuing meeting 
 

150. Declaration of Interests  
 
None declared 
 

151. Questions  
 
None received 
 

152. To consider representations received in relation to an application for a 
premises licence  
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report to consider 
representations received in relation to an application for a premises licence. 
 
This report concerns an application for a premises licence for Tallentire Hall, 
Tallentire, Cumbria.  
 
The applicant is Kesh and Krin Ltd. 
 
Kesh and Krin Ltd have applied for a premises licence with the following 
description:  
 
The premises will trade as guest accommodation, events, such as weddings, 
celebration events, corporate team building, charitable fundraising events, 
conferences etc.  
 
There are residential cottages on the grounds, used for guest accommodation 
will purchase their alcohol via off sales, and drinks will either be charged to the 
room or paid for at the bar 
 

Page 7



The application was for no more than 4999. 
 
23 representations were received in respect of the application. 
 
Members were then advised of the options available and that they were to 
decide in line with the licensing objectives. 
 
The Applicant’s agent (Mr Gibson) made representations, explaining the 
background to the application then responded to concerns raised in the 
representations. 
 
The concerns was that in an original representation received by Mr Cockburn it 
stated that he supported the application in principle but highlighted individual 
concerns. Following this a letter was received from Mr Cockburn on 28 
September 2020 stating that ‘together we object’ due to public nuisance and 
this was on behalf of residents of Hall Court, the applicants agent requested 
that this letter be disregarded as it is a complete U-Turn of the original 
submission. 
 
Mr Cockburn was invited to respond, explaining that he had firstly responded to 
the consultation as an individual, and the letter received on 28 September 2020 
was a collective response from the residents of Hall Court, permission for this 
was granted by officers. Mr Cockburn also explained that no further evidence 
has been introduced and the latest letter builds on information already 
submitted from residents.  
 
The Licensing and Compliance officer provided some clarity explaining that the 
residents of Hall Court were satisfied with Mr Cockburn providing a collective 
response and to speak at this meeting. For reference, the individual residents 
representations from Hall Court were from IP02, IP18, IP19, IP20 (Mr 
Cockburn) and IP23. 
 
The Agent (Mr Gibson), then continued with his representations, outlining the 
specific detail of the licence application. The Agent explained that the main 
purpose of the application is to provide the sale of alcohol for residents of the 
holiday cottages.  
 
The Licence would also cover functions which include charity events, corporate 
days, and weddings. 
 
The Agent explained that the main issue from residents was the hosting of 
wedding receptions. The venue will be an exclusive wedding venue and this will 
be achieved by pricing and by limiting frequency and capacity. 
 
The Agent then advised that any regulated entertainment would only be for pre 
booked functions and is likely to be recorded music. In terms of attendees, the 
request is for a 60 maximum indoor capacity, 100 outside and 200 for charity 
events. The application is for 7-day flexibility and the agent explained that this 
was to cater for the mentioned events, which can occur on any day of the week. 
 
In relation to statutory consultees, the Agent explained that the Police were 
satisfied but wanted to safeguard against multi day music festivals by adding 

Page 8



conditions. Environmental Health are also satisfied if any findings of an acoustic 
report are actioned. 
 
The Agent then responded to the individual representations and the relevant 
objections in relation to the Prevention of Crime and Disorder and the 
Prevention of Public Nuisance. 
 
The Applicant (Mr Harrison) then expanded on noise, explaining that there are 
extensive grounds between the venue and residents and that open discussions 
have taken place with residents throughout the application process. 
 
Members then asked questions of the Agent and Applicant in relation to outside 
activity, the Agent confirmed that any regulated entertainment would be inside 
the premises and no plans are in place to use marquees. Further questions 
were raised about planning permission and traffic. 
 
The panel then heard representations from objectors. 
 
The first objector (J.Watson) expressed concerns over flooding issues, public 
safety, CCTV, public disorder and traffic, in particular the access to both the 
village and Tallentire Hall.  
 
The second objector (Mr Cockburn) spoke on behalf of several residents of Hall 
Court, Tallentire. Concerns were expressed in relation to noise, potential 
trespassing, wildlife, light pollution and security risks. The speaker went on to 
suggest that the applicants licensing application should be withdrawn to pursue 
alternative uses for Tallentire Hall. 
In response to the concerns raised by the speakers, the agent clarified that 
CCTV will be operational at all times and the cameras system will be monitored 
on a regular basis, Mr Gibson went on to explain that flooding, roads and 
drainage are issues for planning.  
 
The Applicant (Mrs Harrison) clarified matters to members in relation to trees, 
and previous smaller events such as charity AGMs that have been held at the 
Hall. 
 
The Applicant (Mr Harrison) then asked questions to the objectors in relation to 
the concerns raised regarding access, noise and traffic. To prevent access and 
trespass onto residents property, the applicant advised that signage can be 
erected with the approval of the Local Authority. 
 
All parties then had the opportunity to summarise the points raised in the 
meeting. 
 
The meeting was then adjourned for member deliberations. 
 
The panel considered all information provided including the representations 
from objectors, written representations from Cumbria Constabulary and 
Environmental Health, the applicants and the agent. The panel also considered 
the relevant legislation. 
 
A motion was moved to grant the premises licence  

Page 9



 
The motion was seconded 
 
A vote was taken on the motion 3 voted in favour, 0 against and 0 abstentions. 
 
The motion was carried. 
 
Decision/Reasons 
 
In making its decision, the Panel had regard to the four licensing objectives 
under the Licensing Act 2003, in particular the prevention of crime and disorder, 
the prevention of public nuisance and the protection of children from harm.  The 
Panel also took into account the written representations made by Cumbria 
Constabulary, the representations made by the Environmental Health Officer, 
the representations received from the applicant and agent, the representations 
from residents and the information set out in the report by the Licensing and 
Compliance Officer. 
 
The Panel considered the Secretary of State’s guidance under section 182 of 
the Licensing Act 2003, the Council’s Licensing Policy and Human Rights.  
 
The Panel sought to balance the interests of the applicant and the interested 
parties. 
 
The Panel considered the options available to it, which were: 
 

a) To grant the licence subject to the conditions mentioned in the operating 
schedule modified to such extent as the authority conditions necessary 
for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and any mandatory 
condition. 

b) To exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities 
to which the application relates; 

c) To refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor 
d) To reject the application 

 
The Panel felt that it was reasonable and proportionate to take the following 
steps to promote the licensing objectives: 
 

 To agree to grant the licence subject to the updated conditions outlined 
at the hearing, which are appended to this decision. 

 
In making its decision, the Panel considered the fact that the Responsible 
Authorities had agreed conditions with the applicant.  It considers that the 
conditions as outlined are sufficient to promote the licensing objectives. 
 
If any party is aggrieved by this decision, they had the right to appeal to the 
Magistrates Court within 21 days of receiving written notification of the decision. 
 

The meeting closed at 3.45 pm 
 

Page 10



At a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Panel held in Zoom Virtual Meeting on Friday 
14 August 2020 at 1.00 pm 
 
Members 
 
  
Councillor Peter Gaston Councillor Malcolm Grainger 
Councillor Peter Kendall Councillor Elaine Lynch 
Councillor Will Wilkinson  
 
Staff Present 
 
C Fleming, D Fletcher, L Jardine and L Tomlinson 
 
 
 
91. Election of Chair  

 
Councillor Grainger was elected as Chair for the ensuing meeting. 
 

92. Declaration of Interests  
 
None declared 
 

93. Questions  
 
None received 
 

 The Chair moved:  
 
That under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they 
may involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 1 of part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 

  
94. To consider an application for a Hackney Carriage Driver Licence  

 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report for the licensing 
regulatory panel to consider whether a person who has made an application for 
a hackney carriage driver’s licence is a fit and proper person to hold such 
licence. 
 
The applicant attended the virtual meeting via phone. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer delivered the report to the panel.  
 
The applicant has been a licensed driver with Allerdale Borough Council since 
24 June 2009.  
 
The applicant has seven penalty points from two speeding offences. Under the 
policy applications with seven or more penalty points cannot be determined by 
officers, as such the application must be considered by the Licensing Panel. 

Page 11



 
The applicant has a Certificate of Professional Competence which allows them 
to drive larger category public service vehicles. The certificate has been in place 
since 2 May 2019. 
 
The applicant submitted a Disclosure and Barring Service check dated 17 
March 2020. This revealed information regarding convictions between 1998 and 
2003. As convictions are over 17 years old, they are for information only as they 
are within the policy. 
 
The officer’s recommendation was to refuse the licence on the grounds that the 
applicant is not a fit and proper person to hold a licence. 
 
Following questions from members, clarity was provided over the applicants 
DVLA driving record and the changes in policies. 
 
The applicant then provided their representations, they advised that of the 
seven points, four of these points would be removed in 20 days, the applicant 
also explained that they thought the limit was eight points. In relation to the 
speeding offences the applicant advised that they were only a few miles per 
hour over the speed limit. 
 
The applicant then went on to advise the panel that they are now a safe driver 
that currently holds a public service driving licence. 
 
Members then asked questions of the applicant in relation to his speeding 
convictions, the applicant advised that the earliest offence was for driving more 
than the speed limit on the motorway, but within roadworks. The applicant 
explained that to try and prove he did not exceed the limit on the motorway, he 
sent the DVLA his tracker from his vehicle. The latest offence was when the 
applicant was driving from a 60mph zone into a 40mph zone and did not slow 
down enough and was caught at approx. 3mph over the speed limit.  
 
The applicant also confirmed that on both occasions of speeding, they were 
driving their personal vehicle. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant left the meeting while 
the panel considered the application. 
 
Members considered the application, the applicant representations and the 
officer’s report. The Panel also considered the relevant legislation and the 
Council’s policies on hackney carriage licence applications.  
 
Councillor Lynch moved the motion to grant the Hackney Carriage driver licence  
 
This was seconded by Councillor Gaston 
 
A vote was taken on the motion 3 voted in favour, 2 against and 0 abstentions. 
 
The motion was carried. 
 
Decision/Reasons 

Page 12



 
The Licensing Regulatory Panel considered the application, the officer’s report, 
and the applicants’ representations. The Panel also considered the relevant 
legislation and the Council’s policies on Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
Vehicle driver licence applications.  
 
The Panel decided to grant delegated authority to the Licensing and 
Compliance Officer to grant the licence on the basis that it was satisfied that the 
applicant is a fit and proper person to hold a driver’s licence under section 51(1) 
and section 59(1) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
respectively. 
 
This decision was not something the panel took lightly, and the panel took the 
opportunity to remind the applicant that speed limits are imposed not only for 
their safety, but other road users and passengers.  
 
The Panel made the decision on the basis that the offence committed in 2017 is 
soon to lapse and the points will be removed from the applicant’s licence. The 
panel were also reasonably satisfied that these were minor offences and were 
not committed while the applicant was driving in professional capacity.  
 
The applicant was advised that if they are aggrieved by the decision of the 
Panel, they can appeal to the Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of the decision. 
 
 

The meeting closed at 2.50 pm 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



At a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Panel held in Zoom Virtual Meeting on 
Thursday 27 August 2020 at 1.00 pm 
 
Members 
 
  
Councillor Allan Daniels Councillor Daniel Horsley 
Councillor Adrian Kirkbride Councillor Ron Munby MBE 
Councillor Alan Smith  
 
Staff Present 
 
C Fleming, D Fletcher, L Jardine, J Morgan and L Tomlinson 
 
 
 
98. Election of Chair  

 
Councillor Smith was elected as Chair for the ensuing meeting 
 

99. Declaration of Interests  
 
5. To consider an application for a Hackney Carriage Driver Licence. 
 Councillor Daniel Horsley; Other Interest; Knows applicant. 
 
6. To consider an application for a Hackney Carriage Driver Licence. 
 Councillor Adrian Kirkbride; Other Interest; Knows applicant. 
 

100. Questions  
 
None received 
 

 The Chair moved:  
 
That under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they 
may involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 1 of part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 

  
 Cllr Horsley left the meeting   
  
101. To consider an application for a Hackney Carriage Driver Licence  

 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report for the licensing 
regulatory panel to consider whether a person who has made an application for 
a hackney carriage driver’s licence is a fit and proper person to hold such 
licence. 
 
The applicant attended the virtual meeting via phone. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer delivered the report to the panel.  
 

Page 15



The applicant has been a licensed driver with Allerdale Borough Council since 
01 August 2017. Information revealed on his application means that his 
application must be considered by the Licensing Panel. 
 
The applicant has nine penalty points from three speeding offences. Under the 
policy, applications with seven or more penalty points cannot be determined by 
officers, as such the application must be considered by the Licensing Panel. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer then read out a reference from the 
applicant’s current employer. 
 
The officer’s recommendation was to refuse the licence on the grounds that the 
applicant is not a fit and proper person to hold a licence. 
 
The applicant then provided their representations, they advised that they enjoy 
their current job and explained their personal circumstances. They went on to 
explain that he often drives in cities and on his latest speeding offence, he 
believed he was in a 40mph zone, not 30mph. 
 
Members then asked questions of the applicant in relation to his employers’ 
reference, and each of his speeding offences. 
 
The applicant explained that all his speeding offences were when the applicant 
was in professional capacity, and that the early two offences were in the local 
area.  
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant left the meeting while 
the panel considered the application. 
 
Members considered the application, the applicant representations and the 
officer’s report. The Panel also considered the relevant legislation and the 
Council’s policies on hackney carriage licence applications.  
 
Councillor Daniels moved the motion to refuse to grant the Hackney Carriage 
driver licence  
 
This was seconded by Councillor Kirkbride 
 
A vote was taken on the motion 4 voted in favour, 0 against and 0 abstentions. 
 
The motion was carried. 
 
Decision/Reasons 
 
The Licensing Panel considered the application, officer’s report, the 
representation from the applicant, the reference from the applicant’s employer 
and advice from officers. The Panel has also considered all relevant legislation 
and the Council’s policy on the relevance of criminal convictions. 
 
The licensing panel decided to: 
 

Page 16



Refuse to grant the licence on the basis that it was not satisfied that the 
applicant is a fit and proper person to hold a driver’s licence under section 59 of 
the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 and in accordance 
with the officer’s recommendation.   
 
This application came before the panel as per the Council’s policy on the 
relevance of criminal convictions, given that the applicant has nine current 
penalty points.  The policy states that an application must be referred to the 
panel where an applicant has seven or more penalty points. 
 
The overriding objective is to protect the safety of the public.  The panel 
considered the pattern of speeding offences, and the fact that the applicant has 
over seven penalty points. The panel also noted that the offences were 
committed during the applicant’s employment as a driver, which was an 
important consideration in making this decision.  The Panel also noted that two 
of the offences were committed in the local area where the applicant would be 
familiar with the speed limits. 
 
The Panel considered the information that the applicant and their employer 
provided regarding personal financial circumstances, but this cannot be taken 
into account when making the decision.  The Panel must consider the 
applicant’s fitness and propriety in line with the licensing objectives and 
personal circumstances do not form part of this decision. 
 
In making its decision, the Panel listened to the representations and the 
information provided.  The panel sought to balance the applicant’s interests 
against the overriding objective to protect the safety of the public.  
 
The applicant was advised that if they are aggrieved by this decision, they have 
the right to appeal to the Magistrates Court within 21 days of receiving written 
notification of the decision. 
 

 Cllr Horsley re-joined the meeting   
  
 Cllr Kirkbride left the meeting   
  
 Meeting adjourned at 14:40pm  

 
The meeting was adjourned as the applicant was unable to access the virtual 
meeting due to technical issues. 

  
 Meeting reconvened 15:00pm, 14 September 2020   
  
102. To consider an application for a Hackney Carriage Driver Licence  

 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report for the licensing 
regulatory panel to consider whether a person who has made an application for 
a hackney carriage driver’s licence is a fit and proper person to hold such 
licence. 
 
The applicant attended the virtual meeting via phone. 
 

Page 17



The Legal Officer delivered the report to the panel. The applicant submitted an 
online application on 28 July 2020. Information revealed on the applicants 
Disclosure and Barring Certificate dated 02 July 2020 means that the 
application had to be considered by the Licensing Panel. The applicant does not 
have any driving penalty points.  
 
The officer’s recommendation was to refuse the licence on the grounds that the 
applicant is not a fit and proper person to hold a licence. 
 
The applicant then provided their representations, explaining the earliest two 
offences on his DBS check were from 12+ years ago. The applicant went on to 
explain that he used to own a shop and that his current employment was a 
casual driving job for an agency. 
 
Members then asked questions of the applicant in relation to his DBS check, in 
particular the caution received in January 2020. The applicant explained that 
they were not aware that the caution would be on the record.  
 
The Legal and Licensing Manager then asked the applicant if he wished to 
defer the application to take advice on his recent caution. The applicant 
continued and explained the circumstances surrounding the caution, explaining 
that the police advised him to plead guilty to the caution. 
 
The Legal Officer and the applicant left the meeting while the panel considered 
the application. 
 
The applicant (and Legal Officer) was invited back to the meeting as the 
members wanted to ask some further questions in relation to the applicant’s 
caution. 
 
The Legal Officer and the applicant left the meeting for a second while the panel 
considered the application. 
 
Members considered the application, the applicant representations and the 
officer’s report. The Panel also considered the relevant legislation and the 
Council’s policies on hackney carriage licence applications.  
 
Councillor Daniels moved the motion to refuse to grant the Hackney Carriage 
driver licence  
 
This was seconded by Councillor Munby 
 
A vote was taken on the motion, 4 voted in favour, 0 against and 0 abstentions. 
 
The motion was carried. 
 
Decision/Reasons 
 
The Licensing Panel considered the application, the officer’s report, the 
representations from the applicant and advice from officers. The Panel also 
considered all relevant legislation and the Council’s policy on the relevance of 
criminal convictions.  

Page 18



 
The licensing panel decided to: 
 
Refuse to grant the licence on the basis that it is not satisfied that the applicant 
is a fit and proper person to hold a driver’s licence under section 59 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 and in accordance with the 
officer’s recommendation.   
 
This application came before the panel as per the Council’s policy on the 
relevance of criminal convictions.  The applicant has two historic convictions for 
driving with excess alcohol and one very recent caution for common assault 
which was accepted in January 2020.   
 
The Council’s policy on the relevance of criminal convictions covers violence 
offences at paragraph 44 and states that a licence will not be granted until at 
least 10 years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed.  
The Panel decided to refuse the grant of the licence based upon the fact that 
the caution for common assault was so recent.  The Panel also had concerns 
about the lack of information provided as to the circumstances surrounding the 
assault. 
 
The overriding objective is to protect the safety of the public.  The Panel 
considered the offences in line with the policy and the recent nature of the 
caution.  Whilst noting the applicants personal and financial circumstances, they 
cannot be taken into account when making a decision as to fitness and 
propriety in accordance with section 59. 
 
In making its decision, the Panel listened to the applicant’s representations and 
the information provided.  The panel sought to balance the applicant’s interests 
against the overriding objective to protect the safety of the public.  
 
The applicant was advised that if they were aggrieved by this decision, they 
have the right to appeal to the Magistrates Court within 21 days of receiving 
written notification of the decision. 
 
 
 

The meeting closed at 16:00pm, 14 September 2020 
 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



At a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Panel held in Zoom Virtual Meeting on Friday 
25 September 2020 at 2.00 pm 
 
Members 
 
  
Councillor Allan Daniels Councillor Peter Kendall 
Councillor Ron Munby MBE Councillor Alan Smith 
 
Apologies for absence were received from  Councillor Adrian Kirkbride 
 
Staff Present 
 
D Fletcher, L Jardine and J Morgan 
 
 
 
139. Election of Chair  

 
Councillor Smith was elected as Chair for the ensuing meeting 
 

140. Declaration of Interests  
 
None declared 
 

141. Questions  
 
None received 
 

 The Chair moved:  
 
That under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they 
may involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 1 of part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 

  
142. To consider an application for a Hackney Carriage Driver Licence  

 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report for the licensing 
regulatory panel to consider whether a person who has made an application for 
a hackney carriage driver’s licence is a fit and proper person to hold such 
licence. 
 
The applicant was in attendance. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer delivered the report to the panel.  
 
The applicant has been a licensed driver with Allerdale Borough Council since 
28 June 2017.  
 

Page 21



The applicant has nine penalty points from two speeding offences. Under the 
policy applications with seven or more penalty points cannot be determined by 
officers, as such the application must be considered by the Licensing Panel. 
 
The applicant submitted a new Disclosure and Barring Service check dated 21 
July 2020, showing a conviction from 2017. 
 
The officer’s recommendation was to refuse the licence on the grounds that the 
applicant is not a fit and proper person to hold a licence. 
 
The applicant then provided their representations, providing mitigation for the 
offence shown on the DBS check. Members were also provided with three 
written references. 
 
Members then asked questions of the applicant in relation to his driving 
convictions, and the offence dated 2017. The applicant denied culpability for the 
offence of driving a mechanically propelled vehicle while unfit through drink or 
drugs (drink). 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant left the meeting while 
the panel considered the application. 
 
Members considered the application, the applicant representations and the 
officer’s report. The Panel also considered the relevant legislation and the 
Council’s policies on hackney carriage licence applications.  
 
A motion was moved to refuse to grant the Hackney Carriage driver licence  
 
The motion was seconded 
 
A vote was taken on the motion 4 voted in favour, 0 against and 0 abstentions. 
 
The motion was carried. 
 
Decision/Reasons 
 

The Licensing Regulatory Panel has considered the application, officer’s report, 
the representation from the applicant, the character references provided by the 
applicant and advice from officers. The Panel has also considered all relevant 
legislation and the Council’s policy on the relevance of criminal convictions  
 

The licensing regulatory panel has decided to: 
 
Refuse to grant the licence on the basis that it is not satisfied that the applicant 
is a fit and proper person to hold a driver’s licence under section 59(1)(a) of the 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 and in accordance with 
the officer’s recommendation.   
 

This application has come before the panel as per the Council’s policy on the 
relevance of criminal convictions, given that the applicant has nine current 
penalty points, and due to the content showing on the applicant’s DBS check.  

Page 22



The policy states that an application must be referred to the panel where an 
applicant has seven or more penalty points. 
 
The overriding objective is to protect the safety of the public.  The panel has 
considered the pattern of driving offences, and the fact  
that the applicant has over seven penalty points.  It has also considered the fact 
that these points were a combination of using a handheld device whilst driving, 
and speeding.  The Panel considers these offences to be inconsistent with the 
public safety objective and consequently cannot agree to grant the licence at 
this time, in line with policy as outlined in the officer’s report. 
 
In respect of the offence which shows on the applicant’s DBS regarding driving 
a mechanically propelled vehicle while unfit through drink or drugs (drink), whilst 
the Panel notes the applicant’s verbal representations in mitigation, it has no 
evidence to conclude that the offence did not occur and as such must take into 
account the information available to it. 
 
The Panel notes the applicant’s personal circumstances; however these cannot 
be taken into account when considering fitness and propriety.  The Panel also 
notes the content of the character references provided.   
 
In making its decision, the Panel listened to your representations and the 
information you have provided.  We sought to balance your interests against the 
overriding objective to protect the safety of the public.  
 
If you are aggrieved by this decision, you have the right to appeal to the 
Magistrates Court within 21 days of receiving written notification of the decision. 
 
 
 

The meeting closed at 3.00 pm 
 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



At a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Panel held in Zoom Virtual Meeting on Friday 
30 October 2020 at 2.00 pm 
 
Members 
 
  
Councillor Peter Gaston Councillor Malcolm Grainger 
Councillor Elaine Lynch Councillor Alan Smith 
Councillor Will Wilkinson  
   
 
Staff Present 
 
D Fletcher, L Jardine, J Morgan and L Tomlinson 
 
 
 
178. Election of Chair  

 
Councillor Grainger was elected Chair for the ensuing meeting 
 

179. Declaration of Interests  
 
5. To consider an application to grant a Hackney Carriage Drivers Licence. 
 Jill Morgan; Other Interest; professional involvement in the case. 
 

180. Questions  
 
None received 
 

 The Chair moved:  
 
That under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they 
may involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 1 of part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 

  
181. To consider an application to grant a Hackney Carriage Drivers Licence  

 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report for the licensing 
regulatory panel to consider whether a person who has made an application for 
a hackney carriage driver’s licence is a fit and proper person to hold such 
licence. 
 
The applicant was in attendance. 
 
The officer’s recommendation was to refuse the licence on the grounds that the 
applicant is not a fit and proper person to hold a licence. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer delivered the report to the panel.  
 

Page 25



The applicants DBS check showed a violence offence in the last 10 years and a 
Police Caution in connection with Child Exploitation, as such officers cannot 
grant the Hackney Carriage Licence and as such the application must be 
considered by the Licensing Panel. 
 
The applicant was been a licensed driver with Allerdale Borough Council until 
his licence was immediately revoked on 22 November 2019, following 
information received from the disclosure unit of Cumbria Constabulary. The 
report advised that the applicant had been subject to a Child Abduction Warning 
Notice (CAWN). The applicant was arrested for breaching the CAWN and for 
assaulting an emergency worker. 
 
There was a subsequent prosecution on 22 February 2020, the applicant was 
found guilty of ‘assault by battery of an emergency worker x2’ and was 
sentenced to suspended imprisonment for 4 months, wholly suspended for 12 
months. 
 
For the offence of ‘Taking a child without lawful authority so as to keep him/her 
from lawful control’, the applicant was found not guilty. 
 
Cumbria Constabulary made a further disclosure on 15 May 2020. The 
applicant was arrested on 14 May 2020 and had received a Police Caution for 
‘Taking a child from a responsible person’. The female child was aged 16 years. 
 
The applicants application for hackney carriage driver licence had been on hold 
until the result of each incident was known. 
 
The applicant continued to communicate with Officers since his revocation in 
December 2019. They also provided some additional documentation which they 
hope will provide background to the CAWN and the arrests which have resulted 
from that notice. The documents include email correspondence with Cumbria 
Constabulary 
 
The applicant provided two character references which were read out to the 
panel. 
 
The applicant then provided their verbal representations, the applicant 
explained the background into the relationship with the female child and her 
mother. The CAWN that was issued prohibited the applicant from making any 
contact with the child.  
 
On 29 September 2019, the child had run away and went to the home of the 
applicant, as the child was reported missing. Police arrived and following 
confrontation the applicant stated that he pushed one constable and held the 
others hand. The applicant was arrested for assault by battery of emergency 
worker and for breaching his CAWN. Due to the arrest he had his licence 
revoked by Allerdale Borough Council. 
 
The applicant was found guilty in February 2020 of assault by battery of 2 
emergency workers, the applicant unaware that his actions warranted this 
charge and conviction.  
 

Page 26



The applicant instructed his solicitor to review the CAWN and discussed the 
documents supplied by his solicitor with the panel, explaining that the there is 
no criminal offence for breaching the CAWN, it is used as an evidential device. 
 
Members then asked questions of the applicant in relation to the CAWN and the 
criminal convictions. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant left the meeting while 
the panel considered the application. 
 
Members considered the application, the officer’s report, the representations 
from the applicant, the references provided by the applicant and advice from 
officers. The Panel also considered all relevant legislation and the Council’s 
policy on the relevance of criminal convictions. 
 
Councillor Lynch moved the motion to refuse to grant the Hackney Carriage 
driver licence  
 
The motion was seconded by Councillor Smith 
 
A vote was taken on the motion 5 voted in favour, 0 against and 0 abstentions. 
 
The motion was carried. 
 
Decision/Reasons 
 

The Licensing Panel considered the application, officer’s report, the 
representations from the applicant, the references provided by the applicant and 
advice from officers. The Panel also considered all relevant legislation and the 
Council’s policy on the relevance of criminal convictions.  
 

The licensing panel decided to: 
 
Refuse to grant the licence on the basis that it is not satisfied that the applicant 
is a fit and proper person to hold a driver’s licence under section 59 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 and in accordance with the 
officer’s recommendation.   
 
This application came before the panel as per the Council’s Policy on the 
Relevance of Criminal Convictions (‘the Policy’) due to the fact that the 
applicant received a four month suspended prison sentence, suspended for 12 
months for two counts of assault by beating of an emergency worker, on 27 
February 2020.  Paragraph 42.1 of the Policy states that a firm line should be 
taken with applicants who have convictions for grievous bodily harm, wounding 
or assault and that at least three years free of such convictions should be 
shown before an application is entertained. 
 
In addition to this conviction, the Authority received the following information: 
 
On 22 November 2019, Cumbria Constabulary advised the Authority that the 
applicant had been subject to a Child Abduction Warning Notice and that the 

Page 27



applicant had subsequently been arrested for breaching that notice and for the 
assault on emergency workers as referenced previously. 
On 27 February 2020, the applicant was found not guilty of a second charge of 
‘Taking a child without lawful authority so as to keep him/her from lawful 
control’. 
 
On 3 March 2020, Cumbria Constabulary informed the Authority that the 
applicant had been arrested on 21 January 2020 for affray and GBH with intent.  
The Panel notes that this was updated on 13 May 2020 to say that the case had 
been closed with no further action being taken. The injured person had refused 
to provide a statement and was not supportive of a prosecution. 
 
On 15 May 2020, Cumbria Constabulary further disclosed that the applicant had 
been arrested on 14 May 2020 and had received a police caution which was 
accepted for ‘Taking a child from a responsible person’.  The female child was 
aged 16 years. 
 
The Council has considered the positive character references supplied, and the 
documentation and verbal representations provided during the hearing. 
 
The Panel has considered the Council’s policy on the relevance of criminal 
convictions, and in particular: 
 
Paragraph 14 which states that the Licensing Authority will have regard to all 
relevant convictions, particularly where there is a long history of offending or a 
recent pattern of repeat offending. 
 
Paragraph 16 which outlines all of the information that the Council will look into.  
Paragraph 42.1 in respect of violence offences as referenced previously. 
 
The Panel has decided to refuse the grant of the licence based upon the fact 
that the assault emergency worker conviction was so recent and outwith the 
policy.  The Panel also had concerns about the caution for ‘Taking a child from 
a responsible person’, particularly as cautions require an admission of guilt, and 
about the alleged breach of the Child Abduction Warning Notice. 
 
The overriding objective is to protect the safety of the public.  The Panel has 
obligations in respect of the protection of children from harm, which has also 
been considered.  The Panel considered the offences in line with the policy and 
the recent nature of the conviction and caution.   
 
In making its decision, the Panel listened to the applicants representations, the 
personal references and the information provided.  The panel sought to balance 
the interests of the applicant against the overriding objective to protect the 
safety of the public.  
 
If the applicant is aggrieved by this decision, they have the right to appeal to the 
Magistrates Court within 21 days of receiving written notification of the decision. 
 
 
 

The meeting closed at 4.10 pm 

Page 28



 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 30



At a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Panel held in Zoom Virtual Meeting on Friday 
11 December 2020 at 2.00 pm 
 
Members 
 
  
Councillor Allan Daniels Councillor Malcolm Grainger 
Councillor Daniel Horsley Councillor Alan Smith 
Councillor Will Wilkinson  
 
Apologies for absence were received from  Councillor Ron Munby MBE 
 
Staff Present 
 
D Fletcher, L Jardine and J Morgan 
 
 
246. Election of Chair  

 
Councillor Malcolm Grainger was elected Chair for the ensuing meeting. 
 

247. Declaration of Interests  
 
5. To consider an application to grant a Hackney Carriage Drivers Licence. 
 Jill Morgan; Other Interest; Professional involvement with the prosecution 
involving the applicant. 
 

248. Questions  
 
None received 
 

249. The Chair moved:  
 
That under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they may 
involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 1 of 
part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 

250. To consider an application to grant a Hackney Carriage Drivers Licence  
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report for the licensing 
regulatory panel to consider whether a person who has made an application for 
a hackney carriage driver’s licence is a fit and proper person to hold such 
licence. 
 
The applicant was in attendance. 
 
The officer’s recommendation was to refuse the licence on the grounds that the 
applicant is not a fit and proper person to hold a licence. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer delivered the report to the panel.  
 

Page 31



The applicant was a licensed driver with Allerdale Borough Council from 
September 2004 until his licence expired on 20 September 2019. The applicant 
attempted to renew the licence on 18 September 2019, however the previous 
DBS check had expired. The applicant was advised they had 28 days to submit 
the new DBS certificate. The certificate was presented in February 2021, as this 
was outside the 28 days timescales, a new application had to be made. 
 
The applicant was convicted of 6 counts of driving, standing or plying for hire 
contrary to s.45 Town Police Clauses Act 1847 on 13 October 2020. The 
applicant was fined £80.00, £35.00 surcharge, and £85.00 prosecution costs.  
 
The Relevance of Criminal Convictions Relating to the Determination of the 
Application to Grant or Renew a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire Driver’s 
Licence does not permit a licence to be granted in circumstances where an 
applicant has a conviction for hackney carriage offences in the 7 years prior. 
 
The applicant then provided their verbal representations, the applicant 
explained that they were convicted of 4 counts of driving, standing or plying for 
hire, and explained Covid-19 has had an impact on his application. 
 
Members then asked questions of the applicant in relation to the offences 
shown on the DBS certificate, the delay in making his application.  
 
In response to questions relating to the applicants driving history, the applicant 
advised the panel they have 9 current penalty points on their driving licence. 
Due to this, and if members resolve to proceed with the application the 
applicant will need to attend a further panel meeting, before any licence can be 
granted. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant left the meeting while 
the panel considered the application. 
 
Members considered the application, the officer’s report, the representations 
from the applicant, the references provided by the applicant and advice from 
officers. The Panel also considered all relevant legislation and the Council’s 
policy on the relevance of criminal convictions. 
 
Councillor Daniels moved the motion to refuse to grant the Hackney Carriage 
driver licence  
 
The motion was seconded by Councillor Wilkinson 
 
A vote was taken on the motion 5 voted in favour, 0 against and 0 abstentions. 
 
The motion was carried. 
 
Decision/Reasons 
 

The Licensing Regulatory Panel considered the application, officer’s report, the 
representation from the applicant and advice from officers. The Panel also 
considered all relevant legislation and the Council’s policy on the relevance of 
criminal convictions.  

Page 32



 
The licensing panel decided to: 
 
Refuse to grant the licence on the basis that it is not satisfied that the applicant 
is a fit and proper person to hold a driver’s licence under section 59(1)(a)(i) of 
the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 and in accordance 
with the officer’s recommendation.   

 

This application came before the panel as per the Council’s policy on the 
relevance of criminal convictions, given that the applicant has a conviction for 
four counts of driving, standing or plying for hire contrary to section 45 Town 
Police Clauses Act 1847 and an historic indecency offence from 1978.   
 
The Panel notes that the applicant confirmed that he had nine current penalty 
points on his driving licence – six for no insurance which were confirmed by the 
Legal and Licensing Manager and a further three for speeding, which were 
admitted by the applicant during the hearing.  The panel does however 
understand that a further licence check would be required to confirm the 
speeding points.  Whilst the information about the three points for speeding had 
not been presented to the panel and would require consideration at a further 
hearing, it notes that the policy states that an application must be referred to the 
panel where an applicant has seven or more penalty points. 
 
The overriding objective is to protect the safety of the public.  The panel 
considered the pattern of driving offences, and the historic indecency offence.  It 
also notes the existence of nine penalty points on the applicant’s licence.   
 
The panel notes that no remorse was shown for the offences nor was any 
mitigation or evidence of exceptional circumstances apparent, which would 
persuade it to grant the licence outside of the criminal convictions policy. 
 
In making its decision, the Panel listened to the applicant’s representations and 
the information he provided.  The panel sought to balance the applicant’s 
interests against the overriding objective to protect the safety of the public.  
 
If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision, they have the right to appeal to the 
Magistrates Court within 21 days of receiving written notification of the decision. 
 

The meeting closed at 3.00 pm 
 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34



Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Licensing Committee – 30 April 2021 

 

Frequency of vehicle testing – hackney carriage and 
private hire vehicles 

 
 
Portfolio holder   Councillor Jim Lister 

Report from    Gillian Collinson 

Wards affected   All Wards 

Is this a key decision  No 
 

 
 

1.0  The reason for the decision 

1.1 To consider proposed amendments to the testing regime, outlined in the Vehicle 
Age Policy which covers hackney carriage and private hire vehicles. 

 

2.0  Recommendations 

2.1 To agree to amend the Vehicle Age Policy by: 
 
2.1.1 Removing the requirement for a report to be carried out by an engineer for vehicles 

aged four years and over (paragraph 3.4 of the current Vehicle Age Policy). 
 
2.1.2 Increasing the number of vehicle tests for vehicles aged four years and over from 

twice per year to three times per year. 
 
2.1.3 The following wording is proposed to replace clause 4 of the existing Vehicle Age 

Policy: 
 

 “Once licensed if a vehicle is over four years of age from the first date of 
registration or reaches four years of age from the first date of registration within the 
duration of its licence, a vehicle test is required no later than four months following 
the commencement date of the vehicle licence and no earlier than 28 days before 
that date (First Four Month Test Date).  For example, if a vehicle turns four on 29 
March, it must be tested by 29 July at the latest, but no earlier than 1 July.  
Following the First Four Month Test Date, subsequent tests must be completed no 
later than four months following the previous test and no earlier than 28 days before 
each subsequent four month test is due to be undertaken.  Tests to be undertaken 

Page 35

Agenda Item 5



by the Council’s contractor.  Failure to comply with this requirement will lead to the 
suspension of the vehicle or refusal to renew the vehicle licence”. 

 
2.1.4 Approving delegated powers for the suspension/revocation of vehicle licences for 

failure to undertake or pass the required tests for the Legal & Licensing Manager, 
Senior Licensing & Compliance Officer and the Licensing & Compliance Officer. 

 

3.0  Background and Introduction 

 
 Current policy 
 
3.1 The Council is the licensing authority for hackney carriage and private hire vehicles 

by virtue of the provisions of the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 and the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.  The Authority sets the licence 
conditions that must be complied with for a licence to be granted.  Conditions 
include the age at which a vehicle can be presented for first time licensing and once 
licensed, the frequency at which it must be presented for testing.  For routine testing 
this may be up to a maximum of three times per year, as specified in the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. 

3.2 As part of the licensing regime, vehicles are tested to ensure that they meet the 
standards required by Allerdale Borough Council. 

3.3 The Council’s Vehicle Age Policy was last revised on 20 March 2019.  The purpose 
of that policy is to ensure that all hackney carriage and private hire vehicles 
operating in the borough are in exceptional condition and remain safe for the use of 
the general public.  It contains two stipulations: 

3.3.1 No vehicle will be licensed as a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle if it is four 
years of age or older at date of application. 

3.3.2 Once licensed, a vehicle can continue to be licensed beyond the age of four years 
providing it complies with a number of conditions. 

3.3. One of the conditions imposed by the policy is that the vehicle has “undergone an 
independent engineer’s, AA or RAC inspection at the applicant’s own cost who 
must submit the report to the Council”.  A number of requirements are set out as to 
the criteria the engineer must fulfil in terms of experience and qualifications.   

3.4 The Vehicle Age Policy stipulates (at clause 4) a further requirement for vehicles 
aged four years or over which states: 

3.4.1 “Once licensed if a vehicle is over four years of age from the first date of registration 
or reaches four years of age from the first date of registration within the duration of 
its licence, a vehicle test is required no later than six months following the 
commencement date of the vehicle licence and no earlier than 28 days before that 
date (First Six Month Test Date).  For example, if a vehicle turns four on 29 March, 
it must be tested by 29 September at the latest, but no earlier than 1 September.  
Following the First Six Month Test Date, subsequent tests must be completed no 
later than six months following the previous test and no earlier than 28 days before 

Page 36



each subsequent six month test is due to be undertaken.  Tests to be undertaken at 
the Council’s appointed testing station.  Failure to comply with this requirement will 
lead to the suspension of the vehicle or refusal to renew the vehicle licence”. 

3.5 On the production of an engineer’s report, any observations that the engineer 
makes must be rectified prior to the usual taxi test conducted by the Council’s 
contractor, who will check these items in addition to the usual test.  The test also 
checks the vehicle is to MOT standard. 

3.6 Historically, the trade have generally used the same engineer who is based in 
Carlisle, but others travel out of county to the RAC or AA if they are members of 
those organisations. 

 Impact of Covid-19  

3.7 On 1 April 2020, the then Acting Chief Executive supported a proposal to defer the 
requirement for an engineer’s report for six months, following the expiry date of the 
licence, together with the penalty of suspension for non-compliance.  This was 
because the local engineer could not carry out the inspections due to health 
reasons.  In addition, restrictions were in place regarding non-essential travel, 
therefore the other organisations based out of county who would otherwise 
undertake the engineer’s inspections advised that they were only doing emergency 
breakdown work.  They were therefore unable to carry out the inspections or 
produce reports. 

3.8 As there appeared to be no other engineer availability, had the stipulation to obtain 
an engineer’s report been mandatory, it would have resulted in non-compliance with 
the policy and the inability to renew vehicle licences. 

4.0  Content  

 
4.1 The local engineer has now retired.  Although some organisations have resumed 

reports, the availability of them depends upon whether an individual is a member of 
that organisation and it would mean that the trade would have to travel out of county 
to obtain a report. 

4.2 Consequently, a proposal to extend the deferral of the requirement to obtain an 
engineer’s report until the end of the current taxi test contract.  This was approved 
by the then Acting Chief Executive in November 2020.  The extension was 
proposed for the following reasons: 

4.2.1 “The tender for vehicle testing station(s) for the contract to test hackney carriage and 
private hire vehicles is currently advertised. The current contract expires on 31 
January 2021. 

 
4.2.2 A consultation document was circulated to the vehicle proprietors asking for their 

views on the current testing facilities, what works well or what improvements or 
changes they would like to see to the testing regime. The trade has previously 
requested that the requirement for an engineer’s report be reviewed. The Department 
for Transport has recently issued statutory taxi and private hire vehicle standards to 

Page 37



licensing authorities outlining how they should carry out the licensing function. 
Consequently all taxi policies must be reviewed in line with these standards. 

 
4.2.3 Legislation prohibits the Council from appointing a testing station outside the 

Borough.  It could be seen as unreasonable to expect licence holders to travel 
outside the county to obtain an engineer’s report. Alternatives are being considered 
as substitutes for having the additional engineer’s report such as increasing the 
frequency of testing up to a maximum of three times per year. This may be 
dependent on vehicle age, mileage, emissions or apply equally across the board.   

4.2.4 Renewals of vehicle licences have been continuing since lockdown. The testing 
station has continued to operate right through. As part of the vehicle age policy, 
evidence of service maintenance is also required. These documents are checked 
by the testing station and must be verified as accurate and sufficient. 

4.2.5 Applicants are producing the service history requirement in line with the remainder 
of the policy and having the vehicle tested by Holcar Auto Services for their renewal 
applications with licences and plates being renewed as usual by Customer 
Services”. 

 
4.2.6 Since the above extension was granted, an options appraisal has been completed 

regarding ongoing taxi testing services.  A report has been prepared for the 
Executive, recommending the direct award of the taxi testing contract to Allerdale 
Waste Services Ltd.  

 
4.2.7 The contract with the current provider that was due to expire on 31st January 2021 

has since been extended to end on 31st May 2021. 
 
4.3 Due to the practical difficulties regarding the engineers’ reports, specifically the lack 

of availability of engineers locally, the Licensing Committee is asked to consider 
removing the requirement for a report for vehicles aged four years and over.   

 
4.4 The Licensing Committee is asked to replace the requirement for an engineer’s 

report for vehicles aged four years and over, with the requirement for an additional 
vehicle test, which means that those vehicles would be tested three times per year.  
It is proposed that this change would take place from 1st June 2021. 

 
4.5  The wording for the proposed amendment to the Vehicle Age Policy is outlined in 

paragraph 2.1.2. 
 
4.6 The remainder of the Vehicle Age Policy conditions would continue to apply, e.g. 

the requirements around service history and proof of evidence of service 
maintenance. 

 
4.7 The proposed changes should promote the public safety objective and increase 

safety standards, due to change in the frequency of testing.  Under the current 
regime, the engineer’s report, service history check, taxi test and MOT are all done 
at the same time.  If the recommendations are approved, checks will take place 
three times per year. 

Page 38



4.8 A taxi/private hire test certificate is valid for a period of 28 days.  This is the reason 
for having a requirement not to undertake the test more than 28 days in advance of 
the due date. 

 
4.9 Delegated Powers 
    

Delegated powers for the suspension/revocation of vehicle licences for failure to 
undertake or pass the required tests are requested for the Legal & Licensing 
Manager, Senior Licensing & Compliance Officer and the Licensing & Compliance 
Officer. 

5.0  Delivery arrangements 

 
5.1 Should the Licensing Committee decide to approve the recommendations contained 

within this report, the Licensing Department will work closely with the relevant 
contractor to ensure that high standards of service are maintained. 

6.0 Implications and Impact 

6.1 Contribution to Council Strategy Priorities, Outputs and Outcomes  

Outstanding Local Services: increasing the frequency of testing will ensure that 
local hackney carriage and private hire services are maintained to an excellent 
standard for use by residents and services.  

Resilient Communities: by providing high quality testing facilities at more frequent 
intervals, the safety of the travelling public will be protected. 

6.2 Finance/Resource implications 

There are no finance/resource implications for the Council and there will be a 
reduction in the amount paid by proprietors overall with the removal of the 
engineers’ reports.  Fees for taxi testing are paid directly to the contractor and are 
not paid as part of the licence fee. 

 

6.3 Legal and governance implications  

There are no legal and governance implications arising from the report.  The 
relevant legislation in respect of taxi testing and public safety comprises the Town 
Police Clauses Act 1847 and the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976. 

6.4 Risk analysis 

 A scored and mitigated risk log 
 

Risk Consequence Controls required 
Mitigated 
score 

Removal of the 
added requirement 
for an independent 

Reduction to public 
safety  

Increasing the 
frequency of the 
vehicle testing 

1 

Page 39



engineer’s 
assessment 

 

6.5 Increasing satisfaction and service 

If approved, the recommendations of this report will ensure an increase in public 
safety and will ensure that the relevant requirements outlined in the relevant 
legislation are complied with.  

6.6 Equality impacts 

 There are no equality implications arising from this report.  

6.7 Health and Safety impacts 

 Health and Safety has been considered fully to ensure the highest standards. 

6.8 Health, wellbeing and community safety impacts 

Public safety is of primary concern within the licensing regime and has been 
considered fully to ensure the highest standards.  Should the recommendations in 
this report be approved, there will be an increase in the standard of public safety 
due to the associated increase in the frequency of vehicle testing. 

6.9 Environmental/sustainability impacts 

Vehicle emissions are monitored regularly as part of the vehicle testing criteria, 
which ensures that the fleet complies with current environmental standards.  

6.10 Other significant implications 

 N/A. 
 

Appendices attached to this report 

 

Appendix number Title of appendix 

1 Vehicle Age Policy (revised March 2019) 

 

Background documents available 

 

Name of background document Where it is available 

N/A  

 
 
Report author(s) and contact officer(s): 
Gillian Collinson 
Senior Licensing and Compliance Officer 
Gillian.collinson@allerdale.gov.uk 
01900 702861 

Page 40



Vehicle Age Policy 

Page 41



Page | 1  

 

Introduction 

 

The purpose of this policy is to ensure all hackney carriages and private hire vehicles 

operating in the borough are in exceptional condition and remain safe for the use of the 

general public. 

 

1. No vehicle will be licensed as a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle if it is four 

years of age or older at date of application. 

 

2. However, once licensed a vehicle can continue to be licensed beyond the age of four 

years providing it complies with the conditions set out below. 

 
Conditions 
 
3. The following conditions have been designed to assist an applicant to decide 

whether their vehicle is in exceptional condition and safe for the use of the general 
public: 
 

The vehicle must have: 
 

3.1 a full service history from the applicant’s date of purchase of the vehicle in 
accordance with the manufacturer’s service schedule and/or supporting 
documentation evidencing a regular, preventative maintenance schedule. This 
can be in the form of a stamped service history book or invoices but the vehicle 
registration number, date of the works and contact information of the party which 
carried out the works must be stated on any invoice. Producing invoices to show 
repair work will not be sufficient, they must show regular servicing.  

   
3.2 no rust, significant dents or significant scratches. This is obviously open to 

individual interpretation and each case will be considered on its own merits.   

 

3.3 an excellent interior which is safe, clean and free of holes, tears and wear and 
tear. 

 

3.4 undergone an independent engineer’s, AA or RAC inspection at the applicant’s 
own cost who must submit the report to the Council. Reports are acceptable from 
an engineer fitting the following criteria:  

 

 A minimum of 3 years’ experience in the motor trade 
 

 Membership to a Professional Body associated with the trade 
 

 One of the following qualifications: 
 

o Institute of Road Transport Engineers Accreditation (IRTE) 
o Higher National Certificate or Diploma (HNC or HND) in Motor Vehicle 
o City & Guilds Level 3 in Motor Engineering 
o NVQ Level 3 in Motor Vehicle Engineering 
o Institute of the Motor Industry Accredited (ATA/AMA) 
o Incorporated Engineer (I.Eng) 

Page 42



Page | 2  

 

o Full Member or Associate of the Institute of the Automotive Engineer 
Assessors (IAEA) 

 
Once Licenced 

 

4. Once licenced if a vehicle is over 4 years of age from the first date of registration or 
reaches 4 years of age from the first date of registration within the duration of its 
licence, a vehicle test is required no later than six months following the 
commencement date of the vehicle licence and no earlier than 28 days before that 
date (First Six Month Test Date). For example, if a vehicle turns 4 on 29 March, it 
must be tested by 29 September at the latest but no earlier than 1 September. 
Following the First Six Month Test Date, subsequent tests must be completed no later 
than 6 months following the previous test and no earlier than 28 days before each 
subsequent six month test is due to be undertaken. Tests to be undertaken at the 
Council’s appointed testing station. Failure to comply with this requirement will lead to 
the suspension of vehicle or refusal to renew the vehicle licence. 
 
 

5. Upon every renewal, the above conditions must be satisfied and evidenced prior to 
the expiry of the licence; should the expiry date pass without the completion of a 
successful renewal then a new application would be required. This means the vehicle 
could not be used as a hackney carriage or for private hire until a new licence has 
been granted by the Licensing Authority. 

 
It is recommended that before proceeding with an application you contact either the 
Licensing Team or the Council’s appointed testing station for clarification on any of the 
above points. 
 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 44



Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Licensing Committee – 30 April 2021 

 

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Screens 

 
 
Portfolio holder   Councillor Jim Lister 

Report from    Gillian Collinson 

Wards affected   All Wards 

Is this a key decision  No 
 

 
 

1.0  The reason for the decision 

1.1 Several requests have been received from the trade, regarding the installation of 
partition screens in hackney carriage and private hire vehicles, to help protect 
licensed drivers during the Covid-19 pandemic. 

 

2.0  Recommendations 

2.1 That the draft policy attached to this report be approved with immediate effect. 
 

3.0  Background and Introduction 

 
3.1 The Covid-19 pandemic has affected the livelihoods of hackney carriage and 

private hire licence holders quite significantly.  In order to assist the trade’s 
recovery, it is proposed that a draft policy be approved regarding the installation of 
partition screens in licensed vehicles. 

3.2 The decision on whether to use a screen rests with the local licensing authority and 
drivers, operators and owners of hackney carriage and private hire vehicles. 

3.3 The Department for Transport states that where a licensing authority decides to 
specify requirements in respect of screens, they are encouraged to consider its 
guidance in developing their own licensing requirements for the fitment of interior 
screens, to help prevent the spread of coronavirus. 

3.4 A copy of the draft policy is attached at Appendix A. 

3.5 As outlined in the draft policy, the Licensing Authority recognises that partition 
screens do not provide 100% protection, but equally recognises that evidence 

Page 45

Agenda Item 6



suggests this type of physical barrier can reduce the rate of transmission of Covid-
19. 

3.6 The purpose of the policy is to provide drivers with physical protection against the 
transmission of Covid-19 in their workplace, to provide protection for passengers 
and to, more generally, provide public confidence and assurance.  

4.0  Content  

 
4.1 The Licensing Authority could ask that the installation of screens be mandatory, or 

discretionary.  It could also choose not to have a policy in this regard.  It is proposed 
however that a policy be introduced, but that that the installation of partition screens 
be discretionary, particularly in light of the new guidance issued by the Department 
for Transport. 

4.2 The Department for Transport published Coronavirus (COVID-19): safety screens 
for taxis and PHVs on 3 March 2021, which provides advice for drivers, operators 
and owners of hackney carriage or private hire vehicles who choose to fit a screen 
or barrier to their vehicle(s) to reduce the spread of Covid-19. 

4.3 The Local Government Association (LGA) has also issued some guidance on the 
installation of protective screens in licensed vehicles (‘Approaches to the use of 
screens in private hire vehicles (PHVs) and taxis’).  This guidance is available on 
the LGA website at https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/approaches-use-screens-
private-hire-vehicles-phvs-and-taxis-during-covid-19-pandemic  

4.4 There are various reasons why the installation of partition screens should not be a 
mandatory condition of private hire and hackney carriage vehicle licences: 

4.4.1 Not all licensed vehicles do the same work and in some cases, e.g. airport 
transfers, a screen would be detrimental to business. 

4.4.2 Some insurance providers may not allow a partition screen to be installed. 

4.4.3 Some drivers may prefer to use other means of sanitation such as PPE and regular 
cleaning. 

4.4.4 The design of some vehicles mean that safety and other features, e.g. side impact 
airbags, air conditioning and sunroofs would be affected detrimentally by partition 
screens. 

4.4.5 Many licensed vehicles are also used as a main family vehicle and partition screens 
would not be appropriate for this. 

4.5 Officers recognise that a discretionary policy will mean that screens are installed in 
some vehicles and not others.  Whilst in principle this is not an issue, in practice it 
may mean some passengers will prefer to travel in a vehicle which does have a 
partition screen. 

4.6 In respect of private hire vehicles, since they are pre-booked, a passenger can 
request a vehicle installed with a partition screen. 

Page 46

https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/approaches-use-screens-private-hire-vehicles-phvs-and-taxis-during-covid-19-pandemic
https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/approaches-use-screens-private-hire-vehicles-phvs-and-taxis-during-covid-19-pandemic


4.7 Allerdale Borough Council’s Licensing Authority does not stipulate a requirement for 
passengers to choose the first vehicle on the rank, therefore they are fully entitled 
exercise their right of choice and travel in a vehicle which has a protective screen. 

4.8 The installation and maintenance of any partition or safety screen will remain the 
sole responsibility of the vehicle owner/driver and/or the operator, subject to any 
contractual arrangements between the parties.  The Council will not accept liability 
in circumstances where a screen causes injury to a passenger or driver. 

5.0  Delivery arrangements 

 
5.1 Should the Licensing Committee decide to approve the draft policy in respect of 

partition screens, the Licensing Authority will work closely with vehicle proprietors to 
ensure that guidance is adhered to, to promote the public safety objective. 

6.0 Implications and Impact 

6.1 Contribution to Council Strategy Priorities, Outputs and Outcomes  

Outstanding Local Services:  The installation of screens in licensed vehicles will 
further enhance the standards of the hackney carriage and private hire vehicle fleet. 

Resilient Communities:  Installing screens will further protect licensed drivers and 
the travelling public and improve customer safety during the Covid-19 pandemic. 
  

6.2 Finance/Resource implications 

There will be no direct financial implications to the Council as the installation of 
screens is optional and the cost will be borne by vehicle proprietors. 

6.3 Legal and governance implications  

The Department for Transport guidance outlines the legislation relevant to the 
installation of screens.  In short, the body of legislation governing road traffic law 
including the approval and use of vehicles is set out in the Road Traffic Act 1988, 
the Road Vehicle Approval Regulations 2020 and the Road Vehicles (Construction 
and Use) Regulations 1986. 

All vehicles before being registered for use on roads in Great Britain must be 
approved and any screen/partition fitted at the point of registration should be 
covered by the original vehicle approval. 

Once a vehicle has been registered, the relevant regulations are the Road Vehicles 
(Construction and Use) Regulations 1986.  These regulations contain provisions 
that apply to all vehicles and components, including requirements for the driver’s 
view, materials for partitions and the general safety of drivers and passengers.  
These are all relevant to the choice and installation of screens in hackney carriage 
and private hire vehicles. 

The Equality Act 2010 places duties on drivers and operators of hackney carriage 
and private hire vehicles with respect to disabled passengers and continues to 
apply where vehicles are fitted with screens or partitions.   

Page 47



6.4 Risk analysis 

 A scored and mitigated risk log 
 

Risk Consequence Controls required 
Mitigated 
score 

Unsafe 
screen/screen 
installation 

Injury to driver and/or 
passengers, 
particularly in the 
event of an accident. 

Policy stipulates a high 
standard for screens and 
screen installation in line 
with DfT and LGA 
guidance. 
 
Liability lies with the 
driver/operator/proprietor 
whose insurer must 
authorise the screen. 

1 

 

6.5 Increasing satisfaction and service 

The installation of screens in hackney carriage and private hire vehicles will improve 
the safety of both drivers and the travelling public.  

6.6 Equality impacts 

 Applies equally to all individuals. 

6.7 Health and Safety impacts 

The draft policy’s key aim is to improve health and safety.  Health and safety has 
been considered fully, to ensure the highest standards. 

6.8 Health, wellbeing and community safety impacts 

Public safety is of primary concern within the licensing regime and has been 
considered fully and in line with government guidance, to ensure the highest 
standards. 

6.9 Environmental/sustainability impacts 

 N/A. 

6.10 Other significant implications 

 N/A. 
 

Appendices attached to this report 

 

Appendix number Title of appendix 

1 Draft policy – Screens Installation Policy in respect of Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles 

 
  

Page 48



 

Background documents available 

 

Name of background 
document 

Where it is available 

‘Coronavirus (COVID-19): 
safety screens for taxis and 
PHVs’ (Department for 
Transport publication) 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/coronavirus-
covid-19-safety-screens-for-taxis-and-phvs/coronavirus-
covid-19-safety-screens-for-taxis-and-phvs 

‘Approaches to the use of 
screens in private hire 
vehicles (PHVs) and taxis 
during the COVID-19 
pandemic’ 

https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/approaches-use-
screens-private-hire-vehicles-phvs-and-taxis-during-
covid-19-pandemic 

 
 
Report author(s) and contact officer(s): 
Gillian Collinson 
Senior Licensing and Compliance Officer 
Gillian.collinson@allerdale.gov.uk 
Tel no. 01900 702861 

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 50



Screen Installation Policy in respect of Hackney Carriage 
and Private Hire Vehicles 

 

Introduction 

 

1. Partitions or safety screens provide a physical barrier between drivers and 

passengers in a vehicle and are often installed in purpose-built hackney carriages as 

a safety feature to protect the driver from physical attacks or theft. 

 

2. There has been an increase in interest from the trade during 2020 and 2021 

regarding the use of screens as a way of providing physical separation between 

drivers and passengers in order to reduce the transmission of COVID-19. 

 

3. Historically, Allerdale Borough Council has not had a policy in respect of screens and 

none of the current fleet have screens installed. 

 

4. It is acknowledged that a partition screen between the driver and passengers will not 

provide 100% protection against the transmission of coronavirus.  However, evidence 

shows that the use of physical barriers is effective in lowering the rate of infection 

and the spread of the virus. 

 

5. It is a matter for vehicle owners, drivers and/or operators to consider whether a 

partition/screen should be installed in their licensed vehicle. 

 

6. The installation and maintenance of any partition or safety screen will remain the sole 

responsibility of the vehicle owner/driver and/or the operator, subject to any 

contractual arrangements between the parties.  The Council will not accept liability in 

circumstances where a screen causes injury to a passenger or driver. 

 

7. This policy outlines the Licensing Authority’s position on the installation of partitions 

or screens in hackney carriages or private hire vehicles and has been introduced 

following the publication of guidance by the Department for Transport (DfT): 

‘Coronavirus (COVID-19): safety screens for taxis and PHVs’. 

 

8. This policy will be regularly reviewed in line with the changes in legislation and 

guidance regarding coronavirus restrictions and amended accordingly.  

 

Specification 

 

The partition or screen: 

 

1. Must comply with the Road Vehicle (Construction and Use) Regulations 1986. 

 

2. Must be made of suitable materials, manufactured to an acceptable standard of finish 

and installed by a competent person.   

 

3. Should be chosen for the individual vehicle, because vehicle designs and 

specifications vary.  Wherever possible, a screen offered or approved by the vehicle 

manufacturer should be chosen to help ensure its suitability for the vehicle.  The 

Page 51



vehicle manufacturer should be contacted by the driver/operator/proprietor for advice 

on screen choice specific to the vehicle. 

 

4. The screen should not be significantly changed or modified from the original 

manufactured design.  In cases where it is necessary to modify the original design of 

the device (e.g. to facilitate the installation of the device in the vehicle), assurances 

should be sought from the supplier/installer that the modification does not raise any 

concerns in relation to the safety of the device and complies with the relevant 

legislation. 

 

5. Must be transparent and must not interfere with the driver’s vision by obscuring 

rearward view in the internal mirror, or causing excessive reflection or distortion in 

that mirror or on to the windscreen.  This should be regularly monitored by the 

driver/proprietor/operator to ensure visibility does not deteriorate over time, e.g. due 

to wear and tear. 

 

6. Must not impede the driver’s movement. 

 

7. Must not impede driver or passenger access or egress to the vehicle and must not 

cause a trip hazard. 

 

8. Must not interfere with vehicle safety systems (e.g. the airbags).  Where possible, a 

flexible screen or a screen with flexible borders should be considered, ensuring that it 

will not interfere with the deployment of side or curtain airbags. 

 

9. Must not interfere with other vehicle safety systems, e.g. seatbelts and their fixing 

points, seat back and head restraint operation. 

 

10. Must not adversely influence or interfere in any way with vehicle type approval. 

 

11. Must not be fitted in such a way that affects the structural integrity of the vehicle. 

 

12. Must not have any sharp edges or protrusions that might cause injury. 

 

13. Must be made of materials that do not have sharp edges if they break. 

 

14. Screens should not be attached to the vehicle using Velcro. 

 

15. Should have a minimal gap between the screen and the sides of the vehicle.  

Screens that fit the shape of the interior of the vehicle will be most effective in 

preventing the transmission of coronavirus. 

 

16. Should be easy to clean between passenger journeys and sufficiently rigid that it 

does not move much when cleaned. 

 

17. Should not be made of toxic or flammable materials.  The driver/operator/proprietor 

should check this with the manufacturer.  

 

18. Must not wrap around the driver’s seat and create a partition between the two front 

seats, in addition to the rear cabin area. 

 

Page 52



Fitting a screen 

 

1. Screens can be fitted by a variety of automotive providers including vehicle 

manufacturer dealerships, specialist screen installers or the driver/operator/proprietor 

if they have the skills and equipment to do so safely. 

 

2. Screens must be installed in accordance with the Department for Transport 

guidance: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/coronavirus-covid-19-safety-

screens-for-taxis-and-phvs/coronavirus-covid-19-safety-screens-for-taxis-and-phvs  

 

Communicating with passengers 

 

It is important that the driver can talk to passengers when a screen is fitted and the following 

things should be considered: 

 

a. Communication may be affected by the use of a screen. 

b. Communication with disabled passengers and how this may be affected. 

c. How communication may be further affected because passengers will be 

wearing a face covering. 

d. Fitting an intercom system might be helpful if the screen would otherwise 

prevent adequate communication. 

e. If stickers or notices are used to give information to passengers, these should 

not reduce the driver’s view through front windows and windscreen, or their 

view of mirrors. 

 

Insurance  

 

Prior to fitting a screen, it is important that the driver/operator/proprietor considers the 

following: 

 

1. The insurance provider should be informed because failure to do so would invalidate 

the insurance policy. 

 

2. The screen must not affect the ability of the vehicle to be properly insured for the 

purpose of carrying persons for hire and/or reward. 

 

3. The Association of British Insurers (ABI) encourages drivers and operators to seek 

guidance from their insurer to ensure compliance with the terms of their insurance 

policy. 

 

4. The insurance provider should be asked whether, following a collision, screen repairs 

or a replacement screen would be included in the insurance cover. 

 

When a screen has been fitted 

 

When a screen has been fitted to a vehicle, the following should be considered: 

 

1. The manufacturer’s instructions regarding maintenance should be followed. 

 

Page 53

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/coronavirus-covid-19-safety-screens-for-taxis-and-phvs/coronavirus-covid-19-safety-screens-for-taxis-and-phvs
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/coronavirus-covid-19-safety-screens-for-taxis-and-phvs/coronavirus-covid-19-safety-screens-for-taxis-and-phvs


2. The screen should be regularly checked for cracks, deterioration and security of 

installation. 

 

3. Relevant guidance should be followed in respect of cleaning the screen. 

 

4. If the screen has an opening for payment, it should be closed or sealed during 

normal driving and only opened during the payment process. 

  

Page 54



 

Approval Procedure 

 

In accordance with the conditions attached to private hire and hackney carriage vehicle 

proprietors’ licences, permission must be sought prior to any vehicle alterations including 

installation of a partition or screen in any vehicles licensed by Allerdale Borough Council. 

 

Permission can be sought by completion of the appropriate form and returning it to the 

authority by email to licensing@allerdale.gov.uk  

 

The Authority reserves the right to seek any additional information that it might require 

including, but not limited to: 

 

1. Technical specification on any partition or screen installed; 

 

2. Written confirmation that any partition or screen installed has been done so 

professionally and in accordance with the manufacturer’s requirements and 

specifications; 

 

3. Written confirmation that the vehicle’s insurance cover has not been affected by the 

installation of the partition or screen; and/or 

 

4. Written confirmation from the vehicle’s manufacturer that the installation of the 

partition or screen does not compromise the integrity of the vehicle structure. 

 

  

Page 55

mailto:licensing@allerdale.gov.uk


Appendix 1: Approval Form 

 

Proprietor Name: 
 

 

Vehicle Registration Number(s): 
 
 

 

Vehicle Licence Number(s):  
 
 

 

Description of partitions or screens: 
 
Please send us the technical 
specification or manufacturer’s 
specification, including images of the 
proposed screen. 
 

 

Declaration: 
 

1. Allerdale Borough Council (‘the Council’) is obligated to process information fairly 
and lawfully.  I understand that the Council will process the information I have 
provided on this form in accordance with the relevant privacy statement.  
Information about how we process personal data can be found at 
https://www.allerdale.gov.uk/en/privacy-policy/  
 

2. I confirm the installation, design and maintenance of the partitions or screen will be 
in accordance with Allerdale Borough Council’s policy and requirements. 
 

3. I understand that the installation and maintenance of any partition or safety screen 
will remain my sole responsibility, subject to any contractual arrangements 
between the vehicle owner/driver and/or the operator. 

  
4. I understand that the Council will not accept liability in circumstances where a 

screen causes injury to a passenger or driver. 
 

5. I confirm that I have notified my insurers of the material alteration to my licensed 
vehicle and it has been confirmed that my insurance for carrying passengers for 
hire and/or reward has not been affected by this alteration. 

 

Date: 
 

 

Signature: 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 56

https://www.allerdale.gov.uk/en/privacy-policy/


Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Procedure at Licensing Meetings 
 

Once the Chair has moved the exemption paragraph the press and public will 
leave the room   
 
Procedure 
 
Step 1 
 
The Chair will ask those present to introduce themselves and explain the 
procedure to be followed. 
 
Step 2 
 
The Chair will ask the author of the report (or their substitute) to outline the 
proposal and the background to the case.  Their role will be to provide factual 
information to the committee. 
 
The Chair invites members of the committee to ask the presenting officer any 
questions they may have about the application.  
 
Step 3 
 
The Chair invites Councillor(s) attending under Procedural Rule 4.31.2 to 
come forward and present objection(s). 
 

 Each Councillor is permitted 10 minutes 

 The Chair asks if Members of the Committee have any questions to 
ask the Councillor(s) 

 The Councillor(s) return to the public area. 
 
Step 4 
 
The Chair invites applicant or the applicant’s representative to make 
representations.  The applicant/applicants representative is permitted 10 
minutes 
 

 The Chair asks if any member of the committee/officers present have 
any questions to ask the applicant/applicants representative 

 
Step 5 
 
The Chair invites any party making representations (including any other 
persons who have been given permission to participate) (if any) to present 
their comment(s). 
 

 The Chair asked if any member of the committee have any questions 
to ask any party making representations  

Page 57

Agenda Annex



 
Step 6 
 
The Chair offers the applicant/applicants representative the final opportunity 
to address the Committee.  The applicant/applicants representative is 
permitted 10 minutes. 
 
Step 7 
 
The Chair will ask the parties to withdraw so that the committee can consider 
its determination.  In considering its determination, the Committee may seek 
advice from its Legal Adviser. 
 
Step 8 
 
The parties will be re-called and informed of the Committees decision. 
 

 Applicant to be advised that the decision will be confirmed in writing 
within 7 days. 

 

 Applicant to be advised of any appeal procedure. 
 
All parties will leave swiftly prior to the next case. 

Page 58



Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Procedure at Licensing Meetings  
 

Policy Formulation 
 
 
Procedure 
 
Step 1 
 
The Chair will explain the procedure to be followed. 
 
Step 2 
 
The Chair will ask the presenting officer (or their substitute) to outline the 
proposal and the background to the case.  Their role will be to provide factual 
information to the committee. 
 
The Chair invites members of the committee to ask the presenting officer any 
questions they may have about the policy.  
 
Step 3 
 
The Chair invites Councillor(s) attending under Procedural Rule 4.31.2 to 
come forward and make representations 
 

 Each Councillor is permitted 10 minutes 

 The Chair asks if Members of the Committee have any questions to 
ask the Councillor(s) 

 The Councillor(s) return to the public area. 
 
Step 4 
 
The Chair invites any party making representations (if any) to present their 
comment(s). 
 

 The Chair to ask if any member of the committee has any questions to 
ask any party making representations.  

 
Step 5 
 
The committee will consider the policy.  In considering the policy, the 
Committee may seek advice from its Legal Adviser. 
 

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 60


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	Minutes , 30/09/2020 Licensing Panel
	Minutes , 14/08/2020 Licensing Regulatory Panel
	Minutes , 27/08/2020 Licensing Regulatory Panel
	Minutes , 25/09/2020 Licensing Regulatory Panel
	Minutes , 30/10/2020 Licensing Regulatory Panel
	Minutes , 11/12/2020 Licensing Regulatory Panel

	5 Frequency of vehicle testing - Hackney Carriage and Private Hire vehicles
	Vehicle Age Policy Amendment Mar 19

	6 Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Screens
	draft policy

	 Licensing Committee Procedures
	Licensing  Comm Procedures Policy


